



# Nevada State Board of Pharmacy

431 W. PLUMB LANE • RENO, NEVADA 89509  
(775) 850-1440 • 1-800-364-2081 • FAX (775) 850-1444  
E-mail: pharmacy@pharmacy.nv.gov • Website: bop.nv.gov

November 1, 2017

## NOTICE OF INTENT TO ACT UPON A REGULATION

### Notice of Hearing for the Adoption and Amendment of Regulations of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy

The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy will hold a Public Hearing at 1:30 p.m., on Wednesday, December 6, 2017, at the Hyatt Place, 1790 East Plumb Lane, Reno, Nevada. The purpose of the hearing is to receive comments from all interested persons regarding the adoption and amendment of regulations that pertain to Chapters 453 and/or 639 of the Nevada Administrative Code.

The following information is provided pursuant to the requirements of NRS 233B.060:

**Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.926:** A regulation relating to the transmission of information to the Prescription Monitoring Program. Definition of Days' Supply and Addition of ICD-10 Code (International Classification of Diseases Tenth Revision). Adding Schedule V drugs to the list of controlled substances that must be reported to the Prescription Monitoring Program. (LCB File No. R045-17)

1. The need for and the purpose of the proposed regulation or amendment.

New language to be added to NAC 639.926 pursuant to Assembly Bill 474 from the 2017 Legislative Session which amended the laws for prescribing controlled substances in Nevada. The proposed amendment adds controlled substances listed in Schedule V drugs to the list of controlled substances that need to be reported to the Prescription Monitoring Program. The proposed amendment also requires that a pharmacy or practitioner transmit the International Classification of Diseases Tenth Revision (ICD-10) diagnosis code for the disease being treated with the controlled substance. The proposed amendment also defines the term "days' supply."

2. Either the terms or the substance of the regulations to be adopted and amended.

A copy of the proposed regulation amendment is attached to this notice.

3. The estimated economic effect of the regulation on the business which it is to regulate and on the public:

(a) Both adverse and beneficial effects.

There should be no adverse economic impact from this regulation on businesses or the public.

(b) Both immediate and long-term effects.

The Board anticipates that there will be no immediate or long-term economic effect on businesses or the public, or that any such effects will be negligible.

4. The estimated cost to the agency for enforcement of the proposed regulation.

There will be no additional or special costs incurred by the Board of Pharmacy for enforcement of this regulation.

5. A description of and citation to any regulations of other state or local governmental agencies which the proposed regulation overlaps or duplicates and a statement explaining why the duplication or overlapping is necessary. If the proposed regulation overlaps or duplicates a federal regulation, the notice must include the name of the regulating federal agency.

The Board of Pharmacy is not aware of any similar regulations of any other state or local governmental agency that the proposed regulation overlaps or duplicates.

6. If the regulation is required pursuant to federal law, a citation and description of the federal law.

This regulation is not required by federal law.

7. If the regulation includes provisions which are more stringent than a federal regulation that regulates the same activity, a summary of such provisions.

The Board of Pharmacy is not aware of any similar federal regulation of the same activity in which the state regulation is more stringent.

8. Whether the proposed regulation establishes a new fee or increases an existing fee.

This regulation does not provide a new or increase of fees.

**Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.440: Changes to Components of a Written Prescription.**  
(LCB File No. R046-17)

1. The need for and the purpose of the proposed regulation or amendment.

New language to be added to NAC 639.926 pursuant to Assembly Bill 474 from the 2017 Legislative Session which produced changes to the laws and procedures for prescribing a controlled substance in Nevada. A written prescription must contain the registration number from the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) of the prescribing practitioner. Current Regulations allow the pharmacist to add the DEA number to the prescriptions. The new Law mandates that the practitioner must identify himself/herself by placing the DEA number on the prescription. The new Law also mandates that the prescription must contain the patient's date of birth, days supply of the medication and the ICD-10 (International Classification of Diseases Tenth Revision) of the disease that is being treated.

2. Either the terms or the substance of the regulations to be adopted and amended.

A copy of the proposed regulation amendment is attached to this notice.

3. The estimated economic effect of the regulation on the business which it is to regulate and on the public:

(a) Both adverse and beneficial effects.

The Board anticipates that there will be no immediate or long-term economic effect on businesses or the public, or that any such effects will be negligible.

(b) Both immediate and long-term effects.

There will be no immediate or long-term economic effect on businesses or the public.

4. The estimated cost to the agency for enforcement of the proposed regulation.

There will be no significant new costs incurred by the Board of Pharmacy for enforcement of this regulation.

5. A description of and citation to any regulations of other state or local governmental agencies which the proposed regulation overlaps or duplicates and a statement explaining why the duplication or overlapping is necessary. If the proposed regulation overlaps or duplicates a federal regulation, the notice must include the name of the regulating federal agency.

The Board of Pharmacy is not aware of any similar regulations of any other state or local governmental agency that the proposed regulation overlaps or duplicates.

6. If the regulation is required pursuant to federal law, a citation and description of the federal law.

This regulation is not required by federal law.

7. If the regulation includes provisions which are more stringent than a federal regulation that regulates the same activity, a summary of such provisions.

The Board of Pharmacy is not aware of any similar federal regulation of the same activity in which the state regulation is more stringent.

8. Whether the proposed regulation establishes a new fee or increases an existing fee.

This regulation does not provide a new or increase of fees.

Persons wishing to comment upon the proposed action of the Board may appear at the scheduled public hearing or may address their comments, data, views, or arguments in written form to the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, 431 West Plumb Lane, Reno, Nevada 89509, or at e-mail address: [shunting@pharmacy.nv.gov](mailto:shunting@pharmacy.nv.gov). Written submissions must be received by the Board at least fourteen days before the scheduled public hearing. If no person who is directly affected by the proposed action appears to request time to make an oral presentation, the Board may proceed immediately to act upon any written submissions.

A copy of this notice and the regulation to be adopted and amended will be on file at the State Library, 100 Stewart Street, Carson City, Nevada, for inspection by members of the public during business hours. Additional copies of the notice and the regulation to be adopted and amended will be available in all counties in which an office of the agency is not maintained, at the main public library, for inspection and copying by members of the public during business hours. The text of each regulation will include the entire text of any section of the Nevada Administrative Code which is proposed for amendment or repeal. This notice and the text of the proposed regulation are also available in the State of Nevada Register of Administrative Regulations which is prepared and published monthly by the Legislative Counsel Bureau pursuant to NRS 233B.0653, and on the Internet at <http://www.leg.state.nv.us>. Copies of this notice and the proposed regulation will also be

mailed to members of the public upon request. A reasonable fee may be charged for copies if it is deemed necessary.

Upon adoption of any regulation, the agency, if requested to do so by an interested person, either before adoption or within 30 days thereafter, will issue a concise statement of the principal reasons for and against its adoption, and incorporate therein its reason for overruling the consideration urged against its adoption.

This notice of hearing has been posted at the following locations:

Nevada State Board of Pharmacy  
Reno, Nevada

Nevada State Board of Pharmacy  
Las Vegas, Nevada

Mineral County Courthouse  
Hawthorne, Nevada

Elko County Courthouse  
Elko, Nevada

Washoe County Courthouse  
Reno, Nevada

**PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE  
STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY**

**LCB File No. R045-17**

September 1, 2017

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [omitted-material] is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §§1-3, NRS 453.221 and 639.070.

A REGULATION relating to controlled substances; revising provisions relating to the transmission of information regarding the dispensing of controlled substances to certain persons; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

**Legislative Counsel’s Digest:**

Under existing regulations, the State Board of Pharmacy requires each pharmacy that uses a computerized system to record information concerning prescriptions and that dispenses to certain persons a controlled substance that is listed in schedule II, III or IV to transmit certain information concerning the controlled substance to the Board or its agent not later than the next business day after dispensing the controlled substance. Existing regulations also require such a pharmacy that does not dispense such a controlled substance to transmit to the Board or its agent a zero report stating that the pharmacy or practitioner did not dispense such a controlled substance on the immediately preceding business day. (NAC 639.926) Certain practitioners who dispense controlled substances are deemed to be pharmacies for the purposes of being subject to those requirements. (NAC 639.745) **Section 1** of this regulation adds controlled substances that are listed in schedule V to the controlled substances for which such pharmacies and practitioners are required to transmit the required information to the Board or its agent. **Sections 2 and 3** of this regulation provide that, beginning January 1, 2018, or upon the effective date of this regulation, whichever occurs later, such a pharmacy or practitioner is required to include in the information transmitted to the Board, the code number adopted by the National Center for Health Statistics and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services that corresponds to the diagnosis for which the controlled substance was prescribed. **Sections 2 and 3** similarly provide a definition for the term “Days Supply.”

**Section 1.** NAC 639.926 is hereby amended to read as follows:

639.926 1. Each pharmacy that uses a computerized system to record information concerning prescriptions and that dispenses a controlled substance that is listed in schedule II, III, ~~IV~~ IV or V to a person who is not an inpatient of a hospital, correctional institution or nursing facility shall transmit to the Board or its agent the following information, as applicable, set forth in the *2011 ASAP Version 4.2 Standard for Prescription Monitoring Programs* published by the American Society for Automation in Pharmacy. The following Segments and the accompanying Data Elements of the Implementation Guide for the *2011 ASAP Version 4.2 Standard for Prescription Monitoring Programs* are hereby adopted by reference:

(a) The Segment entitled "TH Transaction Header" and the following Data Elements:

- (1) Version/Release Number;
- (2) Transaction Control Number;
- (3) Transaction Type;
- (4) Response ID;
- (5) Creation Date;
- (6) Creation Time;
- (7) File Type; and
- (8) Segment Terminator Character;

(b) The Segment entitled "IS Information Source" and the following Data Elements:

- (1) Unique Information Source ID;
- (2) Information Source Entity Name; and
- (3) Message;

(c) The Segment entitled "PHA Pharmacy Header" and the following Data Elements:

- (1) National Provider Identifier (NPI);
- (2) DEA Number;
- (3) Pharmacy or Dispensing Prescriber Name;
- (4) Phone Number;
- (5) Contact Name; and
- (6) Chain Site ID;

(d) The Segment entitled "PAT Patient Information" and the following Data Elements:

- (1) Last Name;
- (2) First Name;
- (3) Address Information - 1;
- (4) City Address;
- (5) State Address;
- (6) ZIP Code Address;
- (7) Phone Number;
- (8) Date of Birth; and
- (9) Gender Code;

(e) The Segment entitled "DSP Dispensing Record" and the following Data Elements:

- (1) Reporting Status;
- (2) Prescription Number;
- (3) Date Written;
- (4) Refills Authorized;
- (5) Date Filled;

- (6) Refill Number;
- (7) Product ID Qualifier;
- (8) Product ID;
- (9) Quantity Dispensed;
- (10) Days Supply;
- (11) Transmission Form of Rx Origin Code;
- (12) Classification Code for Payment Type; and
- (13) Date Sold;

(f) The Segment entitled "PRE Prescriber Information" and the following Data Elements:

- (1) National Provider Identifier (NPI);
- (2) DEA Number;
- (3) DEA Number Suffix;
- (4) Last Name;
- (5) First Name; and
- (6) Phone Number;

(g) The Segment entitled "CDI Compound Drug Ingredient Detail" and the following Data Elements:

- (1) Compound Drug Ingredient Sequence Number;
- (2) Product ID Qualifier;
- (3) Product ID;
- (4) Component Ingredient Quantity; and
- (5) Compound Drug Dosage Units Code;



(h) The Segment entitled "TP Pharmacy Trailer" and the Data Element Detail Segment Count; and

(i) The Segment entitled "TT Transaction Trailer" and the following Data Elements:

(1) Transaction Control Number; and

(2) Segment Count.

2. A copy of the publication may be obtained from the American Society for Automation in Pharmacy at the Internet address <http://www.asapnet.org>, or by telephone at (610) 825-7783, for the price of \$175 for members and \$875 for nonmembers.

3. A pharmacy that dispenses a controlled substance and is required to transmit information to the Board or its agent pursuant to subsection 1 shall transmit the information not later than the end of the next business day after dispensing the controlled substance. A pharmacy that does not dispense a controlled substance as specified in subsection 1 shall transmit to the Board or its agent a zero report stating that the pharmacy did not dispense such a controlled substance on the immediately preceding business day.

4. The information required pursuant to this section or a zero report must be transmitted by means of:

(a) A secure file transfer protocol;

(b) An upload from an Internet web portal; or

(c) A manual entry.

**Sec. 2.** NAC 639.926 is hereby amended to read as follows:

639.926 1. Each pharmacy that uses a computerized system to record information concerning prescriptions and that dispenses a controlled substance that is listed in schedule II,

NEW  
SECOND  
PARALLEL  
SECTION

III, IV or V to a person who is not an inpatient of a hospital, correctional institution or nursing facility shall transmit to the Board or its agent the following information, as applicable, set forth in the *2011 ASAP Version 4.2 Standard for Prescription Monitoring Programs* published by the American Society for Automation in Pharmacy. The following Segments and the accompanying Data Elements of the Implementation Guide for the *2011 ASAP Version 4.2 Standard for Prescription Monitoring Programs* are hereby adopted by reference:

(a) The Segment entitled “TH Transaction Header” and the following Data Elements:

- (1) Version/Release Number;
- (2) Transaction Control Number;
- (3) Transaction Type;
- (4) Response ID;
- (5) Creation Date;
- (6) Creation Time;
- (7) File Type; and
- (8) Segment Terminator Character;

(b) The Segment entitled “IS Information Source” and the following Data Elements:

- (1) Unique Information Source ID;
- (2) Information Source Entity Name; and
- (3) Message;

(c) The Segment entitled “PHA Pharmacy Header” and the following Data Elements:

- (1) National Provider Identifier (NPI);
- (2) DEA Number;

(3) Pharmacy or Dispensing Prescriber Name;

(4) Phone Number;

(5) Contact Name; and

(6) Chain Site ID;

(d) The Segment entitled "PAT Patient Information" and the following Data Elements:

(1) Last Name;

(2) First Name;

(3) Address Information - 1;

(4) City Address;

(5) State Address;

(6) ZIP Code Address;

(7) Phone Number;

(8) Date of Birth; and

(9) Gender Code;

(e) The Segment entitled "DSP Dispensing Record" and the following Data Elements:

(1) Reporting Status;

(2) Prescription Number;

(3) Date Written;

(4) Refills Authorized;

(5) Date Filled;

(6) Refill Number;

(7) Product ID Qualifier;

- (8) Product ID;
- (9) Quantity Dispensed;
- (10) Days Supply;
- (11) Transmission Form of Rx Origin Code;
- (12) Classification Code for Payment Type; ~~{and}~~
- (13) Date Sold; *and*
- (14) ICD-10 Code.**

(f) The Segment entitled “PRE Prescriber Information” and the following Data Elements:

- (1) National Provider Identifier (NPI);
- (2) DEA Number;
- (3) DEA Number Suffix;
- (4) Last Name;
- (5) First Name; and
- (6) Phone Number;

(g) The Segment entitled “CDI Compound Drug Ingredient Detail” and the following Data Elements:

- (1) Compound Drug Ingredient Sequence Number;
- (2) Product ID Qualifier;
- (3) Product ID;
- (4) Component Ingredient Quantity; and
- (5) Compound Drug Dosage Units Code;

(h) The Segment entitled “TP Pharmacy Trailer” and the Data Element Detail Segment Count; and

(i) The Segment entitled “TT Transaction Trailer” and the following Data Elements:

(1) Transaction Control Number; and

(2) Segment Count.

2. A copy of the publication may be obtained from the American Society for Automation in Pharmacy at the Internet address <http://www.asapnet.org>, or by telephone at (610) 825-7783, for the price of \$175 for members and \$875 for nonmembers.

3. A pharmacy that dispenses a controlled substance and is required to transmit information to the Board or its agent pursuant to subsection 1 shall transmit the information not later than the end of the next business day after dispensing the controlled substance. A pharmacy that does not dispense a controlled substance as specified in subsection 1 shall transmit to the Board or its agent a zero report stating that the pharmacy did not dispense such a controlled substance on the immediately preceding business day.

4. The information required pursuant to this section or a zero report must be transmitted by means of:

(a) A secure file transfer protocol;

(b) An upload from an Internet web portal; or

(c) A manual entry.

**5. *For the purposes of this section:***

*(a) “Days Supply” means the fewest number of days necessary to consume the quantity of a controlled substance dispensed to a patient if the patient consumes the maximum dose of the controlled substance authorized by the prescribing practitioner.*

*(b) “ICD-10 Code” means the code established in the International Classification of Diseases, Tenth Revision, Clinical Modification, adopted by the National Center for Health Statistics and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or the code used in any successor classification system adopted by the National Center for Health Statistics and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, that corresponds to the diagnosis for which the controlled substance was prescribed.*

**Sec. 3.** 1. This section and section 1 of this regulation become effective upon filing with the Secretary of State.

2. Section 2 of this regulation becomes effective on January 1, 2018, or upon filing with the Secretary of State, whichever occurs later.

**REVISED PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE  
STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY**

**LCB File No. R046-17**

October 24, 2017

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [emitted material] is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §§1 and 2, NRS 453.221, 453.385 and 639.070.

A REGULATION relating to controlled substances; establishing the required contents of certain prescriptions; revising the required contents of certain prescriptions; revising provisions concerning the authority of a pharmacist and pharmaceutical technician to make changes to such prescriptions; providing other matters properly relating thereto.

**Legislative Counsel's Digest.**

Existing law authorizes the State Board of Pharmacy to adopt regulations relating to the registration and control of the dispensing of controlled substances within this State and requires the Board to adopt regulations that establish the requirements for the form and content of a prescription for a controlled substance. (NRS 453.221, 453.385) Existing regulations require that certain information be contained in each written prescription for a controlled substance. Existing regulations also provide that, if certain required information is missing from such a prescription, a pharmacist or pharmaceutical technician may, before filling the prescription, add that information. (NAC 453.440) This regulation makes those requirements and provisions applicable to all prescriptions for controlled substances, including oral and electronically transmitted prescriptions for controlled substances. This regulation requires that each such prescription include: (1) the patient's date of birth; (2) the days' supply of the controlled substance; and (3) the code number adopted by the National Center for Health Statistics and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services that corresponds to the diagnosis for which the controlled substance is prescribed. This regulation also prohibits a pharmacist or pharmaceutical technician from adding or changing the registration number issued to a prescribing practitioner by the federal Drug Enforcement Administration on any prescription for a controlled substance.

**Section 1.** NAC 453.440 is hereby amended to read as follows:

453.440 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection ~~{2,}~~ 3, each prescription for a controlled substance ~~{, other than an oral or electronically transmitted prescription,}~~ must contain:

- (a) The name of the prescribing practitioner;
- (b) The address of the prescribing practitioner if not immediately available to the pharmacist or pharmaceutical technician;
- (c) ~~{The handwritten signature of the prescribing practitioner in nonerasable ink,}~~
- ~~—(d)}~~ The date that the prescription was issued as expressed in the order of month, day and year;
- ~~{(e)}~~ (d) The full name *and date of birth* of the patient;
- ~~{(f)}~~ (e) The address of the patient if not immediately available to the pharmacist or pharmaceutical technician;
- ~~{(g)}~~ (f) The name, strength and quantity of the drug or drugs prescribed;
- ~~{(h)}~~ (g) The directions for use;
- (h) *The days' supply of the controlled substance;*
- (i) *The ICD-10 code that corresponds to the diagnosis for which the controlled substance is prescribed;*
- (j) The classification of the license of the prescribing practitioner; and
- ~~{(k)}~~ (k) The registration number from the Drug Enforcement Administration of the prescribing practitioner. *If the prescription is written on a preprinted form that lists the names and registration numbers of more than one practitioner, the name and registration number of the prescribing practitioner must be clearly indicated by a mark.*



2. *Each written prescription for a controlled substance must include, in addition to the information required by subsection 1, the handwritten signature of the prescribing practitioner in nonerasable ink.*

3. A prescription issued by a person who is authorized to prescribe controlled substances in the course of his or her official duties and who is exempted from registration pursuant to 21 C.F.R. § 1301.23 may be filled if, in lieu of the requirements set forth in paragraphs (a) and ~~(i)~~ (k) of subsection 1, it contains:

(a) The name of the person who issued the prescription stamped or printed on it;

(b) The branch of military service or the agency pursuant to which the person who issued the prescription is authorized to prescribe controlled substances in the course of his or her official duties; and

(c) The service identification number of the person who issued the prescription. Pursuant to 21 C.F.R. § 1301.23, the service identification number for an employee of the United States Public Health Service is his or her social security number.

~~(3)~~ 4. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection and subsection ~~(2)~~ 3, if the ~~{registration number of the prescribing practitioner, the}~~ address of the prescribing practitioner or the address of the patient is not on the prescription, before filling the prescription, the pharmacist or pharmaceutical technician shall write the missing ~~{registration number,}~~ address or addresses on the prescription or shall record the missing ~~{registration number,}~~ address or addresses in the record of the prescription in the computer system used by the pharmacy. If the address or addresses are immediately available to the pharmacist or pharmaceutical technician by an alphabetical card file, computer, patient profile system or any other system approved by the

Board, the pharmacist or pharmaceutical technician need not write the address or addresses on the prescription or record the address or addresses in the record of the prescription in the computer system used by the pharmacy but shall place on the prescription or in the record of the prescription his or her initials and a notation indicating the addresses are immediately available, including, without limitation, "RA," "readily available," "in files," "on computer" or any other similar notation.

~~{4.}~~ 5. Except as otherwise provided in subsection ~~{2.}~~ 3, if the ~~{registration number of the prescribing practitioner, the}~~ address of the prescribing practitioner or the address of the patient is not on the prescription and the address of the prescribing practitioner or the address of the patient are not immediately available to the pharmacist or pharmaceutical technician, or if the ~~{registration number,}~~ address or addresses have been added by the patient or a person other than the practitioner, before dispensing the prescription an employee of the pharmacy shall:

(a) If the address of the patient is missing or added, obtain:

- (1) Positive identification from the patient to verify his or her identity and address; or
- (2) Verification from the practitioner or his or her agent of the identity and address of the patient.

(b) If the address of the practitioner is missing or added, obtain verification from the practitioner or his or her agent of the address of the practitioner.

~~{(c) If the registration number of the prescribing practitioner is missing or added, obtain verification from:~~

- ~~—— (1) The practitioner or his or her agent; or~~
- ~~—— (2) The Board or its authorized agent.]~~

↪ An employee of the pharmacy shall place his or her initials and a notation indicating the person who provided the identification or verification to the pharmacist or pharmaceutical technician on the prescription or in the record of the prescription in the computer system used by the pharmacy.

~~5.1~~ 6. A pharmacist ~~+~~ or pharmaceutical technician shall not add or change the registration number issued to a practitioner by the Drug Enforcement Administration on a prescription for a controlled substance.

7. A pharmacist:

(a) May, after obtaining approval of the practitioner who issued the prescription, add or change the following information on a prescription for a controlled substance listed in schedule II:

- (1) The strength of the drug prescribed;
- (2) The quantity of the drug prescribed;
- (3) The directions for use; ~~and~~
- (4) The date that the prescription was issued ~~+~~;
- (5) *The days' supply of the drug prescribed; and*
- (6) *The ICD-10 code that corresponds to the diagnosis for which the drug is prescribed.*

(b) May not add or change the following information on a prescription for a controlled substance listed in schedule II:

- (1) The name of the patient;
- (2) The name of the controlled substance prescribed except that the pharmacist may change the name of the controlled substance to reflect the generic name of the controlled

substance if the pharmacist substituted a generic controlled substance for the controlled substance prescribed; or

(3) ~~The~~ *On a written prescription, the* signature of the prescribing practitioner.

(c) Shall:

(1) Initial any addition or change made pursuant to paragraph (a) on the prescription or in the record of the prescription in the computer system used by the pharmacy; and

(2) Make a notation on the prescription or in the record of the prescription in the computer system used by the pharmacy of:

(I) The date and time that the prescribing practitioner approved the addition or change; and

(II) The reason for the addition or change.

8. *For the purposes of this section:*

(a) *“Days’ supply” means the fewest number of days necessary to consume the quantity of the controlled substance dispensed to the patient if the patient consumes the maximum dose of the controlled substance authorized by the prescribing practitioner.*

(b) *“ICD-10 code” means the code established in the International Classification of Diseases, Tenth Revision, Clinical Modification, adopted by the National Center for Health Statistics and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services or the code used in any successor classification system adopted by the National Center for Health Statistics and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.*

Sec. 2. This regulation becomes effective on January 1, 2018, or upon filing with the Secretary of State, whichever occurs later.